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BP MAURITANIA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Registered'No. 10519279) ‘

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2022

Board of Directors: E I O'ISmayilov
R N O Rahmanov
O V Dembitska -

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

In accordance with sectlon 414B (b) of the Compames Act 2006, the dlrectors are takmg advantage of. the
small companies exemption to not prepare a Strategic Report.

. DIRECTORS' REPORT
Directors
- The present directors are listed above.

El O Ismayllov and R N 6] Rahmanov served as directors throughout the ﬁnanmal year. Changes since 1

January 2022 are as follows
' ‘ : Re-appointed ‘Resigned
O V Dembitska : ' _ 8 December 2022 -5 August 2022

Directors' indemnity

The company mdemmﬁes the directors in its Artlcles of Assocxatlon to the extent allowed under section 232
of the Compames Act 2006. Such quallfymg third party . mdemmty prov1510ns for the benefit of the
company’s directors remain in force at the date of this report. :

Dividends

‘The company has not declared any dividends dunng the year (2021: $0). The dlrectors do not propose the
payment of a dividend (2021 $0). .

- Post balance sheet events

In 2Q23 there was an impairment trigger on the Tortue CGU mainly due to an increase in the forecast for
future expenditure and this resulted in an impairment charge of $498 million related to the company s
tangible ‘and intangible assets. This impairment relates to events and circumstances arising since 31
December 2022 and therefore the impact will be mcluded in the fmanmal statements for the year ended 31
December 2023. : :

Going concern

The directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concemn basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements. The current economic and geopolitical environment were con51dered as part of the
going concern assessment. :

Liquidity and financing is managed within the bp group under pooled group-wide arrangements which
include the company. As part of the going concern basis of preparation for the company, the ability and .
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intent of the bp group to support the company has- also been taken into consideration. The most recent bp
group financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis. Forecast liquidity of the bp
group has been assessed under a number of stressed scenarios, including a significant decline in oil prices
over the 12-month period from the date these financial statements were approved. Reverse stress tests
performed indicated that the bp group will continue to operate as a going concern for at least 12 months from
the date of approval of the financial statements even if the Brent price fell to zero. In addition, bp group
management have confirmed the existing intra-group funding and liquidity arrangements as currently
constituted are expected to be maintained for the foreseeable future, being no less than twelve months from
the approval of these financial statements. No material uncertainties over going concern or significant
judgements or estimates on the assessment were identified. Accordingly, the company will be able to draw
on support from the bp group for the foreseeable future and these financial statements have therefore been
prepared on a going concern basis. For further mformatlon on ﬁnancml risk factors, including credit risk and
liquidity risk, see pages 7.

BP Mauritania Investments Limited is'a wholly owned subsidiary of BP Exploration Operating Company
Limited whose ultimate controlling parent is BP p.l.c. There are no external funding arrangements with third
parties. There is an Intra Group Current Account Facility / Internal Financing Accounts (IFA) Agreement in
place between BP International Limited and BP Mauritania Investments Limited which contains an overdraﬁ
facility ($1,000 million).

“In assessing the prospects of BP Mauritania Investments Limited, the directors noted that such assessment is

subject to a degree of uncertainty that can be expected to increase looking out over time and, accordingly,
that future outcomes cannot be guaranteed or predicted with certainty.

Having a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for at least the next .12 months from the date these financial statements were approved, the
directors consider it appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.

Future developments

The directors consider that, despite the uncertainties deriving from the current economic environment and
the loss reported for the year, Phase 1 of the cross-border Greater Tortue Ahmeyim (GTA) development has
made good progress towards first gas and it is the intention of the directors that the business of the company
will continue for the foreseeable future. ‘

 Business update

BP Mauritania Investments Limited (BPMIL) is a UK entity with an overseas branch in Mauritania. In
Mauritania bp has 29.6% interest in C8 (GTA resource area) and 62% interest in BirAllah gas resource area
and is the operator of both blocks.

In December 2018, bp and partners announced that the final investment decision (FID) for Phase 1 of the
cross-border Greater Tortue Ahmeyim (GTA) development had been agreed with the final regulatory and
contract approvals agreed in February 2019. The FID was made following agreement between the
Mauritanian and Senegalese governments and partners: bp, Kosmos Energy and National Oil Companies,
Petrosen and Societe Mauritanienne des Hydrocarbures et de Patrimoine Minier (SMHPM). The GTA
project will produce gas from an ultra-deepwater subsea system and mid-water floating production, storage

“and offloading (FPSO) vessel. The gas will then be transferred to a floating liquefied natural gas (FLNG)

facility at a near-shore hub located on the Mauritania and Senegal maritime border. The FLNG facility is
designed to provide approximately 2.5 million tonnes of LNG per annum on average. The project, the first
major gas project to reach FID in the basin, is planned to provide LNG for global export as well as making
gas available for domestic use in both Mauritania and Senegal.
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During the first quarter in 2020, bp executed a gas sale and purchase agreement (SPA) with partners in the
GTA project whereby all Phase 1 volumes are to be sold to Trading and Shipping (BP Gas Marketing
errted) .

On 6th August 2021, BPMIL, as the operator of the GTA project with the consent of the GTA Unit
participants and respective States entered into a forward sale and leaseback with GTA FPSO Company Ltd
(a fellow subsidiary of bp plc) for the Tortue floating production, storage and offloading (FPSO) unit. Under
the terms of the contract, BPMIL received an upfront payment representing the value of FPSO capital
expenditure incurred by the Joint Operation up to the date of the transaction agreement and will receive the
remaining payments in line with the payments due to the contractor responsible for constructing the FPSO.
'The GTA Joint Operation via BPMIL remains the legal and registered owner of the FPSO until construction
is completed and the vessel is delivered. Once complete and delivered (expected in 2023), the legal title of .
the FPSO will be transferred from GTA Joint Operation to the GTA FPSO Company Ltd and BPMIL will
lease the FPSO for a minimum 15 year term. :

In 2022, the GTA project continued to progress with Phase 1 critical milestones including the completion of
- the offshore Hub Terminal construction and installation of all subsea risers and umbilicals and in Jahuary
2023, FPSO sea trials commenced ahead of subsequent sail away to the Mauritania and Senegal region.

As a result of impairment tests on the GTA (Tortue) Cash Generating Unit (CGU) in 2022 we recorded an
impairment charge of $329 million.

In October 2022, the area covering the BirAllah gas resource (which was previously held under the C8
exploration licence in Mauritania which expired in June 2022) was granted in a new exploration license with
a 30-month exploration andproduction sharing contract to evaluate the gas resource (bp 62%). Kosmos
Energy are currently working on Concept Selection studies to determine if a commercially viable onshore
LNG concept can be identified by 3Q23. If a concept is identified then we would progress into Sub-phase 2
for 6 months of concept evaluation and Sub-phase 3 of a further year for FEED studies, ahead of FID.

The 3rd phase of the block C12 license expired on 14th June 2022 following which we settled the $15.2m
" Minimum Work Obligation (MWO) and relinquished the C12 license.

In November 2022, bp signed a memorandum of understanding with the Government of Mauritania paving
thé way for a number of studies to be conducted over a 12 month period to evaluate the technical and
- commercial feasibility of producing green hydrogen in the country. There was no actual spend recorded in
~ 2022. ~

Principal risks and uncertainties

The bp-group manages, monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that cah impact the
group's ability to deliver its strategy. The group’s system of internal control includes policies, processes,
management systems, organizational structures, culture and standards of conduct employed to manage bp’s
business and associated risks.

- Throughout the year, bp management, the leadership team, the board and relevant committees provrde
oversight of how principal risks to bp are identified, assessed and managed. They support appropriate
governance of risk management including having relevant policies in place to help manage risks. Such
oversight may include internal audit reports, group risk reports and reviews of the outcomes of business
processes including strategy, planning and resource and capital allocation. bp’s group risk team analyses the
group’s risk profile and maintains the group’s risk management system. bp’s internal audit team provides
independent assurance to the chief executive and board as to-whether the group’s system of internal control
is adequately designed and operating effectively to respond appropriately to the risks that are significant to
bp. : '

The company aims toA deliver sustainable value by.id_entifying and responding successfully to risks in line.
with the group's risk management process.
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The risks listed below, separately or in combination, could have a material adverse effect on the
implementation of the company’s strategy, business, financial performance, results of operations, cash flows,
liquidity, prospects, shareholder value and returns and reputation. Unless stated otherwise, further details on

* these risks are included within the risk factors in the Strategic Report of the bp group Annual Report and
Form 20-F for the year ended 31 December 2022. :

Strateglc and commercial risks

Prices and markets

The company’s financial performance is subject to fluctuatmg prices of oil and gas technological change,

exchange rate fluctuations and the general macroeconomic outlook. Oil, gas and product prices are subject to
international supply and demand and margins can be volatile. Political developments, increased supply of oil
and gas or alternative low carbon energy sources, technological change, global economic conditions, public
health situations (including the continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic or any future epidemic or
pandemic) and the influence of OPEC+ can impact supply and demand and prices for our products.

Decreases in oil, gas or product prices could have an adverse effect on revenue, margins, profitability and

cash flows. If these reductions are significant or for a prolonged period, bp management may have to write

down assets and reassess the viability of certain projects, which may impact future cash flows, profit, capital

expenditure, the ability to maintain the company's long-term investment programme. Conversely, an increase

in oil; gas and product prices may not improve margin performance as there could be increased fiscal take,
~ cost inflation and more onerous terms for access to resources.

Exchange rate fluctuations can create currency exposures and impact underlying costs and revenues.

AccesSing and progressing hydrocarbon resources and low carbon opportunities

The company’s ability to progress upstream resources and develop technologies at a level in line with the
group's strategic outlook for hydrocarbon production could impact the company's future production and
financial performance.

Major project deltvety
Poor investment choice, efficiency or delivery, or operatlonal challenges at any major project that underpms
production or production growth, could adversely affect our financial performance.

The company seeks to manage this risk through the bp group projects organization which includes the centre
of expertise for appraisal and optimization, expertise to manage the design and build of projects and
programmes to ensure project objectives are met. This process 18 systematlcally reviewed and continuously
improved. :

- Geopolitical :

The company is exposed to a range of political, economic and social developments and consequent changes
to the operating and regulatory environment which could cause business disruption. Political instability, -
changes to the regulatory environment or taxation, international trade disputes and barriers to free trade,
international sanctions, expropriation or nationalization of property, civil strife, strikes, insurrections, acts of
terrorism, acts of war and public health situations (including the continued impact of the COVID-19
pandemic or any future epidemic or pandemic) may disrupt or curtail our operations, business activities or
investments. These may in turn cause production to decline, limit our ability to pursue new opportunities,
affect the recoverability of our assets and our related earnings and cash flow or cause us to incur additional
costs, particularly due to the long term nature of many of our projects and significant capital expenditure
required.

Joint arrangements and contractors :
The company may have varying levels of control over the standards, operations and complxance of 1ts
partners, contractors and sub-contractors which could result in legal liability and reputational damage. '
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Our partners and contractors are responsible for the adequacy of their resources and capabilities. If these are
found to be lacking, there may be financial, operational or safety exposures for the company. Should an
incident occur in an operation that the company participates in, our partners and contractors may be unable
or unw1111ng to fully compensate us agamst costs we may incur on thelr behalf or on behalf of the
arrangement.

Digital infrastructure and cybersecurity

The energy industry is subject to fast-evolvmg risks, including ransomware, from cyber threat actors,
including nation states, criminals, terrorists, hacktivists and insiders. Current geopolitical factors have
increased these risks. There is also growing regulation around data protection and data privacy. A breach or
failure of our or third parties’ digital infrastructure — including control systems — due to breaches of our
cyber defences, or those of third parties, negligence, intentional misconduct or other reasons, could seriously
disrupt our operations. This could result in the loss or misuse of data or sensitive information, including
employees’ and customers’ personal data, injury to people, disruption to our business, harm to the
environment or our assets, legal or regulatory breaches, legal liability and significant costs including fines,
cost of remediation or reputational consequences. Furthermore, the rapid detection of attempts to gain
unauthorized access to our.digital infrastructure, often through the use of sophisticated and co-ordinated
means, is a challenge and any delay or failure to detect could compound these potential harms.

Climate change and the transition to a lower carbon economy .
Laws, regulations, policies, obligations, government actions, social attitudes and customer preferences
relating to climate change and the transition to a lower carbon economy, including the pace of change to any
~ of these factors, and also the pace of the transition itself, could have, adverse impacts on our business
including on our access to and realization of competitive opportunities in any of our strategic focus areas, a
decline in demand for, or constraints on our ability to sell certain products, constraints on production and -
supply, adverse litigation and regulatory or litigation outcomes, increased costs from compliance and
increased provisions for environmental and legal liabilities. ‘

Changes in investor preferences and sentiment could affect our access to capital markets and our
attractiveness to potential investors, potentially resulting in reduced access to financing, mcreased ﬁnancmg
costs and impacts upon our business plans and financial performance.

Technological improvements or innovations that support the transition to a lower carbon economy, and
customer preferences or regulatory incentives that alter fuel or power choices, could impact demand for oil
. and gas. '

Depending on the nature and speed of any such changes and our response, these changes could increase
costs, reduce the company's profitability, reduce demand for certain products, limit our access to new
opportunities, require us to write down certain assets or curtail or cease certain operations, and affect
investor sentiment, our access to capital markets, our competitiveness and financial performance.

Our performance could also be negatively impacted if we fail to protect our intellectual property.

Competition :

The bp group strateglc progress and performance could be impeded 1f we are unable to control our
development and operating costs and margins, if we fail to scale our businesses at pace, or to sustain,
develop and operate a high-quality portfolio of assets efficiently. Furthermore, as the bp group transitions
from an international oil company to an integrated energy company, we face an expanded and rapldly
evolving range of competitors in the sectors in which we operate. i
Crisis management and business continuity '

The bp group's reputation and business activities could be negatively impacted if the management does not
-respond, or is perceived not to respond, in an appropriate manner to any major crisis.
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Insurance

The bp group generally purchases insurance only in sxtuatxons where this is legally and contractually
required. Some risks are insured with third parties and reinsured by group insurance companies. Uninsured
losses could have a material adverse effect on the bp group financial position which in turn could adversely
affect the company :

Safety and operational risks

Process safety, personal safety and environmental risks

The company is exposed to'a wide range of health, safety, security and environmental risks.There can be no
certainty that our operating management system or other policies and procedures will adequately identify all
process safety, personal safety and envuonmental nsks or-that all our operating activities, will be conducted
in conformance with these systems.

Such events or conditions could cause harm to people, the environment and the company’s assets and could
result in regulatory action, legal liability, business interruption, increased costs, damage to the company's
reputation and potentially denial of its licence to operate.

Drilling and production : :

- The ‘company's activities require high levels of investment and are sometimes conducted in challengmg
environments such as those prone to natural disasters and extreme weather, which heightens the risks of
technical integrity failure. The physical characteristics of an oil or natural gas field, and cost of drilling,
completing or operating wells is often uncertain. We may be required to curtail, delay or cancel drilling
operations or stop production because of a variety of factors, including unexpected drilling conditions,
pressure or irregularities in geological formations, equipment failures or accidents, adverse weather
conditions and compliance with governmental requirements. ‘ ‘ ‘

Security

Acts of terrorism, piracy, sabotage, activism and similar activities directed against the company's operations
and facilities, transportation or digital infrastructure could cause harm to people and severely disrupt
operations. The company's activities could also be severely affected by conflict, civil strife or political
unrest.

Compliance and control risks

Ethical mtsconduct and non-comphance :

Incidents of ethical misconduct or non-compliance with apphcable laws and regulations, mcludlng anti-
bribery and corruption, competition and antitrust, and anti-fraud laws, trade restrictions or other sanctions,
could damage the company's reputation, and result in litigation, regulatory action, penalties and potentially
affect our licence to operate.

In relation to trade restrictions or other sanctions, current geopolitical factors have increased these risks.

Regulation
Changes in the law and regulation, including how they are mterpreted and enforced, could increase costs,
constrain the company's operations and affect its business plans and financial performance.

- Reporting :

- External reporting of financial and non-financial data relies on the integrity of the control environment, bp
group's systems and people operating them. Failure to report data accurately and in compliance with
applicable standards could result in regulatory action, legal liability and reputational damage.
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Financial risk management

The company is exposed to a number of different financial risks arising from natural business exposures as
well as its use of financial instruments including market risks relating to commodity prices, foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates; credit risk; and liquidity risk. Further details on these financial risks are.
included within Note 29 of the bp group Annual. Report and Form 20-F for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Prices and markets

The company’s financial performance is subject-to ﬂuctuatlng prices of prices of 011 gas technologlcal
change, exchange rate fluctuations and the general macroeconomic outlook. Oil, gas and product prices are
subject to international supply and demand and margins can be volatile. Political developments, increased
supply of oil and gas or alternative low carbon energy sources, technological change, global economic
conditions, public health situations (including the continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic or any
future epidemic or pandemic) and the influence of OPEC+ can impact supply and demand and prices for our
products. ' ‘ :

Decreases in oxl gas or product prices could have an adverse effect on revenue, margins, profitability and
cash flows. If these reductions are significant or for a prolonged period, bp management may have to write
down assets and reassess the viability of certain projects, which may impact future cash flows, profit, capital
expenditure, the ability to maintain the company's long-term investment programme. Conversely, an increase
in oil, gas and product prices may not improve margin performance as there could be increased fiscal take
cost inflation and more onerous terms for access to resources.

Exchange rate fluctuations can Create currency'exposures and impact underlying costs and revenues.

Liquidity, financial capacuy and financial, including credit, exposure -

‘Failure. to work within the financial framework set by the bp group could impact the bp group as well as the
company’s ability to operate and result in financial loss. Credit rating downgrades could potentially increase
financing costs and limit access to financing or engagement in the company's trading actwmes on acceptable
terms, which could put pressure on the group’s liquidity.

For further details see Note 29 of the bp group Annual Report and Form 20-F for the year ended 31
December 2022. .

Auditors

Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, Deloitte LLP have expressed thelr w1111ngness to
continue in office as audltors and are therefore deemed reappointed as auditors.
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Directors’ statement as to the disclosure of information to the auditor

The directors who were members of the board at the time of approving the directors’ report are listed on
page 1. Having made enquiries of fellow directors and of the company’s auditor, each of these directors
confirms that:

* To the best of each director’s knowledge and belief, there is no information relevant to the preparation of
the auditor's report of which the company’s auditor is unaware; and

*  Each director has taken all the steps a director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of ‘
relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with section 418 of the Companies Act
2006. =

Approved by the board of directors and signed on behalf of the board by:

DocuSigned by:

Hml | 5mm1i(ow
6A7A03ES5230D493...

E I O Ismayilov
Director

September 21, 2023

Registered Office:

Chertsey Road
Sunbury on Thames -
Middlesex

TW16 7BP

United Kingdom
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BP MAURITANIA INVESTMENTS LIMITED

The directors are responS1ble for preparing the Annual Report and the fmanc1a1 statements in accordance -
with appllcable UK law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) including
Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’. Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and the profit or loss. for that period. In preparing these financial statements the -
directors are required to: :

*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

*+ state whether applicable United Kingdom accountmg standards have been followed, sub_]ect to any
material departures disclosed and explamed in the financial statements; and .

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern ‘basis unless it is mapproprlate to presume that
the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm that they have complied with these requirements. Details of the directors' assessment
of going concern are provided in the directors' report. -
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TO THE MEMBERS OF BP MAURITANIA INVESTN[ENTS LIMITED
" Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of BP Mauritania Investments Limited (the 'company"):
*  give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its loss for the
year then ended;
* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountmg Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”; and
*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

.We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
» the profit and loss account;
the statement of comprehensive i income;
» the balance sheet;
» the statement of changes in equlty, and
» the related notes 1 to 23.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced D1sclosure Framework” (United
ngdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). -

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s respon51b11mes for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accountmg
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any matetial uncertainties relating to events or conditions .
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for
a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are-authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information ' .
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report , other than the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or othérwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are requ1red
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

10 | DTT
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Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. :

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concermn and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FR_C’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also
enquired of management and the directors about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities,
including those that are specific to the company’s business sector. :

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework(s) that the company operates in, and identified the
key laws and regulations that: '
» had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These
include UK Companies Act and tax legislation; and
+ .do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the -
company'’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team including relevant internal specialists regarding the opportunitiés and
incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial
statements. '

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk
of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting

" estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are
unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

« reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

»  performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of
material misstatement due to fraud; '

+  enquiring of management, in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

+ reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

1 3 DTT
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matteré prescribéd by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

= the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with apphcable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified any material misstatements in the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
- branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

»  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

¢ the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption from the requirement to
prepare a strategic repon

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the -
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DocuSigned by:
ﬂ LL&( ( k‘i\u‘ M
41E845A01A8B477...
Mikhail Raikhman, CA
(Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor -
London, United Kingdom

September 22, 2023
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; | ~ PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

"FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BP MAURITANIA INVESTMENTS LIMITED

o 2022 2021

Note $000 $000
-Expldration expenses : o 7 " (8) (13,929).
Administrative expenses 17 153,572 (221,436)
Impairment of intangible assets 10 (797) (11,192)
Impairment of tangible assets - 11 (328,760) (404,252)
Reorganisation / restructuring costs — (1,596)
Operating loss : . . 3 (175,993)  (652,405)
Interest receivable and similar income 52,814 1 1,641 -
Interest payable and similar expenses (189,266) '  (68,413)
Loss beforg taxation (312,445) (709,177)‘

. Taxation o | 8 98538 . 105,084
Loss for the financial year ‘ (213,907) (604,093)

The loss of $213,907 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2022 was derived in its entirety from

continuing operations.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

There is no comprehensive income attributable to the sharehdlders_ of the company other than the losses for |

the years.
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

BP MAURITANIA INVESTMENTS LIMITED

(Registered No.10519279)

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Stocks .

Debtors — amounts falling due:
within one year
after one year

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Lease liabilities
Net current 'assets

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Lease liabilities _
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Other provisions

NET ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)
.'Capital and reserves

Called up share capital
Profit and loss account

. TOTAL EQUITY

Note

10
11

12

13
13

14
15

14
15

17

18
19

Approved by the board of directors and signed on behalf of the boafd by:

Docusigned by:

Eml [ Sw\N?iW
B6A7A03ES5230D493...

E I O Ismayilov
Director

September 21, 2023
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2022 2021
$000 $000
95,571 93,127
317,894 1,770
413,465 94,897
4323 7.919
486,920 216,821
1,475,240 1,092,206
121,786 353,709
2,088,269 1,670,655
(698,623) (871,062)
(740) (1,521)
1,388,906 798,072
1.802371 892.969
(1,353,523) (965,097)
. —_ (154)
(106,779)  (221,742)
342,069 (294,024)
2,340,356 1,490,356 .
(1,998,287)  (1,784,380)
342,069 (294,024)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BP MAURITANIA INVESTMENTS LIMITED

" Balance at 1 January 2021 .

Loss for the financial year, representing total comprehensive

Issue of share capital '

Balance at 31 December 2021 .

Loss for the financial year, representing total comprehensive
. Issue of share bapital .

Balance at 31 December 2022 .

15

-Called up

Profit and

_share capital  ]oss account
(Note 18) (Note 19) Total
$000 - $000 $000
600,000  (1,180,287)  (580,287)
— (604,093)  (604,093)
-890,356 — 890,356
1,490,356  (1,784,380)  (294,024)
— (213,907) (213,907)
850,000 — 850,000
2,340,356 (1,998,287) 342,069
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BP MAURITANIA INVESTMENTS LIMITED

1.  Authorisation of ﬁnanclal statements and statement of compliance with Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) :

The financial statéments of BP Mauritania Investments Limited for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
approved by the board of directors on 21/09/2023 and the balance sheet was signed on the board’s
-behalf by E I O Ismayilov. BP Mauritania Investments Limited is a private limited company incorporated,
domiciled and registered in England and Wales (registered number 10519279). The company's registered
office is at Chertsey Road, Sunbury on Thames, Middlesex, TW16 7BP, United Kingdom. These financial
statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Dlsclosure
Framework' (FRS 101) and the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Principal activity

The company was incorporated on 9 December 2016. The company is engaged in the exploration for and
appraisal of hydrocarbons in Mauritania. BP Mauritania Investments Limited (BPMIL) is a UK entity with
an overseas branch in Mauritania.

A Dnll Stem Test was performed in the Tortue / Ahmeyim gas discovery in August 2017, located offshore
on the border between Mauritania (C -8 block) and Senegal (Saint Louis Profond block). bp completed
significant engineering design towards the Tortue / Ahmeyim project, an integrated gas value chain and
near-shore liquefied natural gas (LNG) development which would export LNG to global markets as well as
supplying gas to Senegal and Mauritania. :

~ In December 2018 bp and partners announced that the final investment decision (FID) for Phase 1 of the
crossborder Greater Tortue Ahmeyim development had been agreed, the parties continued to finalise
agreements and obtained final regulatory and contract approvals on 20 February 2019. The FID was made .
following agreement between the Mauritanian and Senegalese governments and partners: bp, Kosmos
Energy and National Oil Companies, Petrosen and Societe Mauritanienne des Hydrocarbures et de
Patrimoine Minier (SMHPM).

The project will produce gas from an ultra-deepwater subsea system and mid-water floating production,-
storage and offloading (FPSO) vessel. The gas will then be transferred to a floating liquefied natural gas
(FLNG) facility at a near-shore hub located on the Mauritania and Senegal maritime border. The FLNG -
facility is designed to provide approximately 2.5 million tonnes of LNG per annum on average. The project,

" the first major gas project to reach FID in the basin, is planned to provide LNG for global export as well as
making gas available for domestic use in both Mauritania and Senegal.

On 1 July 2019 the national oil company of Mauritania (Societe Mauritanienne des Hydrocarbures et de
Patrimoine Minier (SMHPM)) exercised their option to participate in the crossborder Greater Tortue
Ahmeyim development thereby granting the natxonal oil company (NOC) a 7% equity interest in the
development.

On 1 July 2019, bp confirmed the GTA-1 (bp 56% and operator) appraisal well, encountered approximately
- 30 metres of net gas pay in high-quality Albian reservoir confirming gas resource expectations.

On 16 December 2019, bp confirmed the successful result of the Orca-1 appraisal well located in block C8
(bp 62% and operator) in the BirAllah appraisal area offshore Mauritania. The well successfully encountered
all five of the gas sands originally targeted. The well was then further deepened to reach an additional target,
which also encountered gas. ' ‘

On 6th August 2021, BP Mauritania Limited (BPMIL), as the operator of the Greater Tortue Ahmeyim
(GTA) project with the consent of the GTA Unit participants and respective States entered into a forward
sale and leaseback with GTA FPSO Company Limited for the Tortue floating production, storage and
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offloading (FPSO) unit. Under the terms of the contract, BPMIL received an upfront payment representing
~ the value of FPSO capital expenditure incurred by the Joint Operation up to the date’ of the transaction
agreement and will receive the remaining payments in line with the payments due to the contractor

- responsible for constructing the FPSO. '

. In 2022, the GTA project continued to progress with Phase 1 critical milestones includirlg the completion of
the offshore Hub Terminal construction and installation of all subsea risers and umbilicals and in January
2023, FPSO sea trials commenced ahead of subsequent sail away to the Mauritania and Senegal region.

In October 2022, the area covering the BirAllah gas resource (which was previously held under the C8
exploration licence in Mauritania which expired in June 2022) was granted in a new exploration license with

a 30-month exploration and production sharing contract to evaluate the gas resource (bp 62%). Kosmos
‘Energy are currently working on Concept Selection studies to determine if a commercially viable onshore
LNG concept can be identified by 3Q23. If a concept is identified then we would progress into Sub-phase 2 -
for 6 months of concept evaluation and Sub-phase 3 of a further year for FEED studies, ahead of FID.

The 3rd phase of the block C12 license expired on 14th June 2022 following which we settled the $15.2m
Minimum Work Obligation (MWO) and relinquished the C12 license. :

In November 2022, bp signed a memorandum of understanding with the Government of Mauritania paving
the way for a number of studies to be conducted over a 12 month period to evaluate the technical and
commercial feasibility of producmg green hydrogen in the country. There was no actual spend recorded in
2022.

2.  Significant accounting policies, judgements, estimates and assumptions

The significant accounting policies and critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions of the
company are set out below. :

Basis of preparatidn

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101. The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for the assets.

The accounting policies that follow have been consrstently applied to all years presented except where
otherwise indicated.

The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 ‘Application of Financial Reporting
Requirements’ issued by the FRC. Accordingly, these financial statements were prepared under the historical
cost convention in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework and
the Companies Act 2006. As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure
exemptions available under that standard in relation to:

(a) the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 38B, 38C, 38D, 40A, 40B, 40C, 40D, 111 and
134 to 136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;
~(b) the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to present
comparative information in respect of: ‘
@) paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1;
(i) paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
(iii)  paragraph 74 A(b) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
(iv)  paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets;
(c) the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;
(d) the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors in relation to standards not yet effective;
(e) the requirements of paragraph 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;
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(f) the requirements of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered
into between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the
transaction is wholly owned by such a member;

(g) the requirements of paragraphs 130(f)(ii), 130(f)(iii), 134(d) to 134(f) and 135(c) 135(e) of IAS 36,
Impairment of Assets;

(h) the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

(1) the requirements of paragraphs 91 — 99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;

(j) the requirement of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118,
119(a) to (c), 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;

(k) The requirements of paragraph 52, the second sentence of paragraph 89, and paragraphs 90, 91 and
93 of IFRS 16 Leases; '

() The requirements of paragraph 58 of IFRS 16 Leases, provided that the disclosure of details of
indebtedness required by paragraph 61(1) of Schedule 1 to the Regulations is presented separately
for lease liabilities and other liabilities, and in total.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the group financial statements of BP p.l.c. The group
financial statements of BP p.l.c. ate' available to the public and can be obtained as set out in Note 23.

The financial statements are presented in US dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars ($000), except where otherwise indicated.

Significant accounting policies: use of judgements, estimates and assumptions

Inherent in the application of many of the accounting policies used in preparing the financial statements is
the need for management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported. amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Actual outcomes could
-differ from the estimates and assumptions used.

The areas requiring the most significant judgement and estimation in the preparation of the financial
statements are: exploration and appralsal intangible assets; the recoverability of asset carrymg values,
including the estimation of reserves; provisions and post balance sheet events.

Judgements and estimates, not all of which are significant, made in assessing the current economic and
geopolitical environment, and climate change and the transition to a lower carbon economy on the financial
statements are also set out in boxed text below. Where an estimate has a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year this is .
specifically noted within the boxed text.

Judgements and estimates made in assessing the impact of climate change and the transition to a lower
carbon economy

Climate change, the energy transition, bp’s strategy to 2030 and ambmon to become a net-zero company by
2050 or sooner were considered in preparing the financial statements. These issues may also have
significant impacts on the currently reported amounts of the company’s assets and liabilities discussed
below as well as similar assets and liabilities that may be recognized in the future. bp’s assumptions for
investment appraisal help create an investment decision making framework for currently unsanctioned
future capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment, and intangibles including exploration and
appraisal assets, that is designed to support the effective and resilient implementation of bp’s strategy. The
price assumptions used for investment appraisal include oil and gas price assumptions, which are producer
prices and are therefore net of any future carbon prices that the purchaser may be required to pay, and an
assumption of a single carbon emissions cost imposed on the producer in respect of operational greenhouse
gas (GHG) emissions (carbon dioxide and methane) in order to incentivize engineering solutions to
mitigate GHG emissions on projects. bp's oil and gas price assumptions for value-in-use impairment testing
are aligned with those investment appraisal assumptions, except for 2023 oil and gas prices which reflect
near-term market conditions. The assumptions for future carbon emissions costs in value-in-use impairment
testing differ from the investment appraisal assumptions and are described below.
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The energy transition is likely to impact the future prices of commodities such as oil and natural gas which
-in turn may affect the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, and goodwill in the oil and gas
industry. bp’s best estimate oil and natural gas price assumptions for value-in-use impairment testing were
revised during 2022. Prices are disclosed in real 2021 terms. The Brent oil assumption from 2024 to 2030
was increased to $70 per barrel to reflect near-term supply constraints before steadily declining to $45 per
barrel by 2050 continuing to reflect the assumption that as the energy system decarbonizes, falling -oil
demand will cause oil prices to decline. The price assumptions for Henry Hub gas up to 2035 and up to
2050 were increased to $4.00 per mmBtu and $3.50 per mmBtu respectively, reflecting increased demand
for US gas production to offset reduced Russian gas flows. The revised assumptions sit within the range of
external scenarios considered by management and are in line with a range of transition paths consistent
with the temperature goal of the Paris climate change agreement, of holding the increase in the global
average temperature to well below 2°C above pre-industrial levels and pursuing efforts to limit the
temperature increase to 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels. . :

The group’s investment appraisal process includes a single carbon emissions price assumption for the
investment economics which is applied to bp's anticipated share of bp's forecast of the investments assets'
scope 1 and 2.GHG emissions where they exceed defined thresholds, and is assumed to be payable by bp as
the producer. However, for value-in-use impairment testing on bp's existing cash generating units (CGUs),
consistent with all other relevant cash flows estimated, bp is required to reflect management's best estimate
of any expected applicable carbon emission costs payable by bp, including where bp is not the operator, in
the future for each jurisdiction in which the group has interests. This requires management’s best estimate
of how future changes to relevant carbon emission cost policies and/or legislation are likely to affect the
future cash flows of the group’s applicable CGUs, whether currently enacted or not. Future potential
carbon pricing and/or costs of carbon emissions allowances are included in the value-in-use calculations to
the extent management has sufficient information to make such an estimate. Currently this results in limited
application of carbon price assumptions in value-in-use impairment tests given that carbon pricing
legislation in most impacted jurisdictions where the group has interests is not in place and there is not
sufficient information available as to the relevant policy makers' future intentions regarding carbon pricing
to support an estimate. Where management consider that the outcome of a value-in-use impairment test
could be significantly affected by a carbon price in place in any jurisdiction, this is incorporated into the
value-in use impairment testing cash flows.

However, as bp’s forecast future prices are producer prices, the group considers it reasonable to assume
that if, in addition to the costs already in place, further scope 1 and 2 emission costs were partially to be
borne directly by oil and gas producers including bp in future and the prevalence of such costs were to
become widespread, the gross oil and gas prices realised by producers would be correspondingly higher
over the long term, resulting in no expected overall materially negative impacts on the group’s net cash
flows. See significant judgements and estimates: recoverability of asset carrying values for further
information including sensitivity analysis in relation to reasonably possible changes in the price
assumptions and carbon costs. :

Production assumptions within upstream property, plant and equipment value-in-use impairment tests reflect
management’s current best estimate of future production of the existing upstream portfolio. The group sees
the expected reduction in upstream hydrocarbon production by around 25% by 2030 being achieved through
future active management, including divestments, and high-grading of the portfolio. Changes in upstream
production since 2019 will be included in the best estimate to the extent the divestments have been
announced or completed however, as the specific future changes to the remainder of the portfolio are not yet
known, the current best estimate used for accounting purposes does not include the full extent of the
expected upstream production reduction. See significant judgements and estimates: recoverability of asset
. carrying values for sensitivity analyses in relation to reasonably possible changes in production for upstream
oil and gas properties respectively. '

Management will continue to review price assumptions as the energy transition progresses and this may
result in impairment charges or reversals in the future. :
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Exploration and appraisal intangible assets
The energy transition may affect the future development or viability of exploration prospects. A significant
proportion of exploration and appraisal intangible assets were written off in 2020 and the recoverability of
- the remaining intangibles was considered during 2022. No significant write-offs were identified. These
assets will continue to be assessed as the energy transition progresses. See significant Judgement
- exploration and appralsal mtanglble assets and Note 10 for further information.

Provisions: decommissioning
- The energy transition may bring forward the decommissioning of oil and gas industry assets thereby
"increasing the present value of associated decommissioning provisions. Decommissioning cost estimates are
based on the known regulatory and external environment. These cost estimates may change in the future;
including as a result of the transition to a lower carbon economy.

The majority of bp’s existing upstream oil and gas properties are expected to start decommissioning within
the next two decades. bp’s expectation to reduce its upstream hydrocarbon production by around 25% by
2030 is expected to be achieved through future active management, including divestments, and high-grading
of the portfolio. Any resulting increases or decreases to the weighted ‘average timing of decommissioning
will be driven by the profile of assets held in the revised portfolio. Currently, the expected timing of

- decommissioning expenditures for the upstream oil and gas assets in the group’s portfolio has not materially
been brought forward. Management does not expect a reasonably possible change of two years in the
expected timing of all decommissioning to have a material effect on the upstream decomm1ss1omng
provisions, assuming cash ﬂows remain unchanged. - :

Management will continue to review facts and circumstances to assess if decommissioning provisions need
to be recognized. See significant judgements and estimates: provisions for further information.

Judgements and estimates made in assessing the impact of the geopolitiéal and economic environment
In preparing the financial statements, the following areas involving judgement and estimates were identified
as most relevant with regards to the impact of the ‘current geopolitical and economic environment.

Oil and gas price assumptions _
" The near-term oil and gas price assumptions applied in value-in-use impairment testing have been increased
to reflect current supply constraints and increased demand for gas to replace Russian supply. See significant
judgements and estimates: recoverability of asset carrying values for further information.

Discount rate assumptions

The discount rates used for impairment testing and provisions were reassessed during the year in light of
changing economic and geopolitical outlooks. The nominal discount rate applied to provisions was increased
twice during the year to reflect rising US Treasury yields. The principal impact of these rate increases was a
$29 million decrease in the decommissioning provision with an associated decrease in the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment of $8 million. Impairment discount rates were also increased from those
reported in 2021. See significant judgements and estimates: recoverablhty of asset carrying values and
provisions for further mformatlon

Significant accounting policies
Going concern

The directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements. The current economic and geopolitical environment were considered as part of the
going concern assessment.

Liquidity and financing'is managed within the bp group under pooled group-wide arrangements which
include the company. As part of the going concern basis of preparation for the company, the ability and

* intent of the bp group to support the company has also been taken into consideration. The most recent bp
group financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis. Forecast liquidity of the bp
/
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group has been assessed under a numiber of stressed scenarios, including a significant decline in oil prices -
over the 12-month period from the date these financial statements were approved. Reverse stress tests -
performed indicated that the bp group will continue to operate as a going concern for at least 12 months from
the date of approval of the financial statements even if the Brent price fell to zero. In addition, bp group
management have confirmed the_ existing intra-group funding and liquidity arrangements as currently
constituted are expected to be maintained for the foreseeable future, being no less than twelve months from
the approval of these financial statements. No material uncertainties over going concern or significant
judgements or estimates on the assessment were identified. Accordingly, the company will be able to draw
oon support from the bp group for the foreseeable future and these financial statements have therefore been
prepared on a going concern basis. For further mformatlon on financial risk factors, including credit risk and
liquidity nsk see pages 7.

In assessing the .prospects of BP Mauritania Investment Limited, the directors noted that such assessment is
subject to a degree of uncertainty that can be expected to increase looking out over time and, accordingly,
that future outcomes cannot be guaranteed or predicted with certainty.

Having a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for at least the next 12 months from the date these financial statements were approved, the
directors consider it appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements. ‘

Foreign currency

The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements 1is US dollars. The functional currency is
* the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency
in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions in foreign currencies are ‘initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the rate of
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Where this is not practical and exchange rates do not fluctuate
materially the average rate has been used. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated into the functional currency at the spot exchange on the balance sheet date. Any resulting
exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account, unless hedge accounting is applied. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities, other than those measured at fair value, are not retranslated subsequent to
initial recognition. '

Investments

Interests in joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement in which two or more parties have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. :

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have

rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an

arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of .
* the parties sharing control. '

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. The company recognizes,
on a line-by-line basis, its share of the assets, liabilities and expenses of these joint operations incurred
jointly with the other partners, along with the company’s income from the sale of its share of the output and
any liabilities and expenses that the company has incurred in relation to the joint operation.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, include expenditure on the exploration for and evaluation of oil and
natural gas resources and are stated at the amount initially recognized, less accumulated amortlzatlon and’
accumulated impairment losses :

For information on accounting for expenditures on the exploration for and evaluation of oil and natural gas
resources, see the accounting pohcy for oil and natural gas exploration, appraisal and development
expenditure below.

Intangible assets are carried initially at cost unless acquired as part of a business combination. Any such
asset is measured at fair value at the date of the business combination and. is recognized separately from
goodwill if the asset is separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights.

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortized on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives. For
patents, licences and trademarks, expected useful life is the shorter of the duration of the legal agreement and
economic useful life, and can range from three to fifteen years. The expected useful lifée of biogas rights
agreements is the shorter of the duration of the legal agreement and economic useful life and can be up to 50
years. Digital asset costs generally have a useful life of three to five years.

The expected useful lives of assets and the amortization method are reviewed on an annual basis and, if
necessary, changes in useful lives or the amortization method are accounted for prospectively.

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Oil and natural gas exploration and appraisal expenditure
Oil and natural gas exploration and appraisal expenditure is accounted for using the principles of the
successful efforts method of accounting as described below.

" Licence and property acquisition costs
Exploration licence and leasehold property acquisition costs are initially capitalized within intangible assets
and are reviewed at each reporting date to confirm that there is no indication that the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount. This review includes confirming that exploration drilling is still under way
or firmly planned or that it has been determined, or work is under way to determine, that the discovery is
“economically viable based on a range of technical and commercial considerations and sufficient progress is
_ being made on establishing development plans and timing. If no future activity is planned, the remaining
balance of the licence and property acquisition costs is written off. Lower value licences are pooled and
" amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated period of exploration. Upon internal approval for
development and recognition of proved reserves of oil and natural gas, the relevant expenditure is transferred
to tangible assets.

Exploration and appratsal expenditure

Geological and geophysical exploration costs are charged to the proﬁt and loss account as incurred. Costs
directly associated with an exploration well are capitalized as an intangible asset until the drilling of the well
is complete and the results have been evaluated. These costs include employee remuneration, materials and
fuel used, rig costs and payments made to contractors. If potentially commercial quantities of hydrocarbons
are not found, the exploration well costs are written off. If hydrocarbons are found and, subject to further
appraisal activity, are likely to be capable of commercial development, the costs continue to be carried as an
asset. If it is determined that development will not occur then the costs are expensed.

Costs " directly associated with appraisal activity undertaken to determine the size, characteristics and
commercial potential of a reservoir following the initial discovery of hydrocarbons, including the costs of
" appraisal wells where hydrocarbons were not found, are initially capitalized as an intangible asset. Upon
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internal approval for devclopment and recognition of proved reserves, the relevant expendlture is transferred
to tangible assets.

The determination of whether potentially economic oil and natural gas reserves have been discovered by an
exploration well is usually made within one year of well completion, but can take longer, depending on the
complexity of the geological structure.. Exploration wells that discover potentially economic quantities of oil
and natural gas and are in areas where major capital expenditure (e.g. an offshore platform or a pipeline)
would be required before production could begin, and where the economic viability of that major capital
expenditure depends on the successful completion of further exploration or appraisal work in the area,
remain capitalized on the balance sheet as long as such work is under way or firmly planned.

Significant judgements and estimates: exploration and appraisdl intangible assets

Judgement is required to determine whether it is appropriate to continue to carry costs associated with
exploration wells and exploratory type stratigraphic test wells on the balance sheet. This includes costs
relating to exploration licences or leasehold property acquisitions. It is not unusual to have such costs
remaining suspended on the balance sheet for several years while additional appraisal drilling and seismic
work on the potential oil and natural gas field is performed or while the optimum development plans and
timing are established.The costs are carried based on the current regulatory and political environment or any .
known changes to that environment. All such carried costs are subject to regular technical, commercial and
management review on at least an annual basis to confirm the continued intent to develop, or otherwise
extract value from, the discovery. Where this is no longer the case, the costs are immediately expensed.

The can’ymg amount of capitalized costs and further information on the write-offs-are included in Note 7 and
10. :

\

Tangible assets

Tangible assets owned by the company are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of

- operating in the manner intended by management, and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use, directly-attributable finance costs. The purchase price or
construction cost is the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire
the asset.

Exchanges of assets are measured at fair value unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance
or the fair value of neither the asset received nor the asset given up is reliably measurable. The cost of the

" acquired asset is measured at the fair value of the asset given up, unless the fair value of the asset received is
miore clearly evident. Where fair value-is not used, the cost of the acquired asset is measured at the carrying
amount of the asset given up. The galn or loss on derecognition of the asset given up is recognized in profit
or loss.

Expenditure on major maintenance refits or repairs comprises-the cost of replacement assets or parts of
assets, inspection costs and overhaul costs. Where an asset or part of an asset that was separately depreciated
is replaced and it is probable that future economic benefits- associated with the item will flow to the
company, the expenditure is capitalized and the carrying amount of the replaced asset is derecognized.
Inspection costs associated with major maintenance programmes are capitalized and amortized over the
period to the.next inspection. Overhaul costs for major maintenance programmes, and-all other maintenance
costs are expensed as mcurred

Expenditure on the construction, installation and completion of infrastructure facilities such as platforms,
pipelines and the drilling of ‘development wells, including service and unsuccessful development or
delineation wells, is capitalized within property, plant and equipment and is deprecmted from the
commencement of production.
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Oil and natural gas properties, including related pipelines, are depreciated using a unit-of-production
method. The cost of producing wells is amortized over proved developed reserves. Licence acquisition,
common facilities and future decommissioning costs are amortized over total proved reserves. The unit-of-
production rate for the depreciation of common facilities takes into account expenditures incurred to date,
together with estimated future capital expenditure expected to be incurred relating to as yet undeveloped
reserves expected-to be processed through these common facilities.

Tangible assets are depremated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives. The typical useful
lives of the company’s tangible assets are as follows: ’

Fixtures and fittings o . .

Fixtures and fittings 4 years

The expected useful lives and depreciation method of tangible assets are reviewed on an annual basis and, 1f
necessary, changes in useful lives or the depreciation method are accounted for prospectively.

The carrying amounts of tangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

An item of tangible assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
profit and loss account in the period in which the item is derecognized.

Impairment of intangible and tangible assets ' :
The company assesses assets or groups of assets, called cash-generating units (CGUS) for nnpa1rment :
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable, for example, changes in the company’s business plans, changes in commodity prices, evidence
of physical damage or increases in estimated future development expenditure. If any such indication of
impairment exists, the company makes an estimate of the -asset’s recoverable amount. Individual assets are
grouped for impairment assessment purposes at the lowest level at which there are identifiable cash flows
that are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets. An asset group’s recoverable amount
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. If it is probable that the value of the CGU
will primarily be recovered through a disposal transaction, the expected disposal proceeds are considered in
determining the recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset group exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset group is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

The business segment plans, which are approved on an annual basis by senior management, are the primary
source of information for the determination of value in use. They contain forecasts for oil and natural gas ’
production, refinery throughputs, sales volumes for various types of refined products (e.g. gasoline and
lubricants), revenues, costs and capital expenditure. Carbon taxes and costs of emissions allowances are also
included in estimates of future cash flows, based on the regulatory environment in each jurisdiction in which
the group operates. As an initial step in the preparation of these plans, various assumptions regarding market
conditions, such as oil prices, natural gas prices, power prices, refining margins, refined product margins and
cost inflation rates are set by senior management. These assumptions take account of existing prices, global
supply-demand equilibrium for oil and natural gas, other macroeconomic factors and historical trends and
variability. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are adjusted for the risks specific to the
asset group that are not reflected in the discount rate and are discounted to their present value typically using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money.
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Fair value less costs of disposal is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants and does not reflect the effects of factors that may be specific to the entity and
not ‘applicable to entities in general. In limited circumstances where recent market transactions are not
available for reference, discounted cash flow techniques are applied. Where discounted cash flow analyses
are used to calculate fair value less costs of disposal, estimates are made about the assumptions market
participants would use when pricing the asset, CGU or group of CGUs containing goodwill and the test is
performed on a post-tax basis.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable

. amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset or CGU in prior years. Such reversal is
recognized in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future years to
allocate the asset’s or CGU's revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its
remaining useful life. "

Significant judgements and estimates: recoverability of asset carrying values

Determination as to whether, and by_how much, an asset, CGU, or group of CGUs containing goodwill is
impaired involves management estimates on highly uncertain matters such as the effects of inflation and
deflation on operating expenses, discount rates, capital expenditure, carbon pricing (where applicable),
production profiles, reserves and resources, and future commodity prices, including the outlook for global
or regional market supply-and-demand conditions for crude oil, natural gas, power and refined products.
Judgement is required when determining the appropriate grouping of assets into a CGU or the appropriate
grouping of CGUs for impairment testing purposes. For example, individual oil and gas properties may
form separate CGUs whilst certain oil and gas properties with shared infrastructure may be grouped
together to form a single CGU. Alternative groupings of assets or CGUs may result in a different outcome
from impairment testing. '

‘The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal.
Fair value less costs of disposal may be determined based on expected sales proceeds or similar recent
market transaction data.

Details of impairment charges and reversals recognized in the profit and loss account are provided in Note
3 and details of the carrying amounts of assets are shown in Note 10 and Note 11.

The estimates for assumptions made in impairment tests in 2022 relating to discount rates and oil and gas
properties are discussed below. Changes in the economic environment including as a result of the energy
transition or other facts and circumstances may necessitate revisions to these assumptions and could result
in a material change to the carrying values of the company's assets within the next financial year.

Discount rates

For discounted cash flow calculations, future cash flows are adjusted for risks specific to the CGU. Value-
in-use calculations are typically discounted using a pre-tax discount rate based upon the cost of funding the
bp group derived from an established model, adjusted to a pre-tax basis and incorporating a market
participant capital structure and country risk premiums. Fair value less costs of disposal calculations use the
post-tax discount rate. '

The discount rates applied in impairment tests are reassessed each year and in 2022 the post-tax discount
~ rate used was 8% (2021: 7%) and pre-tax discount rate for Mauritania CGU was 11% (2021: 8%).
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Oil and natural gas properties

For oil and natural gas properties expected future cash flows are estimated using management’s best
estimate of future oil and natural gas prices, production and certain resources volumes. The estimated
future level of production is based on assumptions about future commodity prices, production and
development costs, field decline rates, current fiscal regimes and other factors.

In 2022, the company identified oil and gas properties with carrying amounts totalling $317 million (2021:
$Nil) where the headroom, as at the dates of the last impairment test performed on those assets, was less than
or equal to 20% of the carrying value. A change in the discount rate, reserves, resources or the oil and gas
price assumptions in the next financial year may result in a recoverable amount of one or more of these
assets above or below the current carrymg amount and therefore theré is a significant risk of impairment
reversals or charges in that period.

The recoverability of intangible exploration and appraisal expenditure is covered under Oil and natural gas
exploration, appraisal and development expenditure above.

Information on the carrying amounts of the company’s. oil and natural gas properties, together with the
amounts recognized as depreciation, depletion and amortization is contained in Note 11.

Oil and natural gas prices

The price assumptions used for value-in-use impairment testing are based on those used for investment
appraisal. bp s carbon emissions cost assumptlons and their interrelationship with oil and gas prices are

~ described in 'Judgements and estimates made in assessing the impact of climate change and the transition to
-a lower carbon economy' on page 14. The investment appraisal price assumptions are recommended by the
senior vice president economic & energy insights after considering a range of external price sets, and
supply and demand profiles associated with various energy transition scenarios. They are reviewed and
approved by management. As a result of the current uncertainty over the pace of transition to lower-carbon
supply and demand and the social, political and environmental actions that will be taken to meet the goals
of the Paris climate change agreement, the scenarios considered include those where those goals are met as
well as those where they are not met

During the year, bp's price assumptions applied in value-in-use impairment testing (in real 2021 terms) for
Brent oil from 2024 up to 2030 was increased to $70 per barrel to reflect near term supply constraints
before steadily declining to $45 per barrel by 2050 continuing to reflect the assumption that as the energy
system decarbonises, falling oil demand will cause oil prices to decline. The price assumptions for Henry
Hub gas up to 2035 and up-to 2050 were increased to $4.00 per mmBtu and $3.50 per mmBtu respectively
to reflect the increased demand for US gas production to offset reduced Russian gas flows. These price
+  assumptions are derived from the central case investment appra1sa1 assumptions, adjusted where applicable
' to reflect short-term market conditions. A summary of the group’s revised price assumptions for Brent oil
and Henry Hub gas, apphed in 2022 and 2021, in real 2021 terms, is provided below. The assumptions
represent management’s best estimate of future prices at the balance sheet date, which sit within the range
of external scenarios considered as appropriate for the purpose. They are considered by bp to be in line
with a range of transition paths consistent with the temperature goal of the Paris climate change agreement,
of holding the increase in the global average temperature to well below 2°C above pre-industrial levels and
pursuing efforts to limit the temperature increase to 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels. However, they do not
correspond to any specific Paris-consistent scenario. An inflation rate of 2% (2021 2%) is applied to
determine the price assumptions in nominal terms.
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2022 price assumptions 2023 2025 2030 2040 2050
" Brent oil ($/bbl) 77 70 70 58 45
Henry Hub gas ($/mthu) 4.00 4.00 4.00 3.50 3.50
2021 price assumptions 2022 2025 2030 2040 : 2050
Brent oil ($/bbl) T 61 61 ' 56 46
Henry Hub gas ($/mmBtu) 4.08 3.06 3.06 . 306 28

Global oil production increased by 4.9% in 2022. Despite western sanctions on Russian oil exports,
Russian export volumes remain at 97% of pre-invasion levels, as oil shipments to the EU and OECD Asian
countries are redirected to China, India, and Turkey. Global oil demand continued its post-COVID-19
recovery, increasing by 2.3% in 2022. Europe’s energy crisis, a strong US dollar, and persistent COVID-19
lockdowns in China all contributed to slower energy demand growth and weaker oil demand growth. Brent
increased by $30 per barrel in 2022 as a result of the rebound in oil demand and the oil risk premium
associated with the Russia-Ukraine war. bp's long-term assumption for oil prices is lower than the 2022
price average, based on the judgement that, in the long term, oil demand is likely to fall so that the price
levels needed to encourage sufficient investment to meet declining global oil demand is also lower.

US gas prices increased around two-thirds to $6.4 per mmBtu in 2022. The higher prices reflect much
tighter demand supply balance for most of 2022. Through April, lower production particularly in
Appalachia, depleted gas stocks to 90% of the five-year average, increasing prices. Thereafter, while
production recovered, a record warm summer and lower coal stocks at power plants increased the call on
gas fired generation, keeping demand strong and preventing gas stocks from rebuilding, This, was despite
an outage at the Freeport LNG terminal since June reducing the demand for LNG exports. Further,
industrial demand was further boosted by geopolitical disruptions that increased global product prices,
favouring US firms due to relatively lower feedstock costs. Prices only moderated in the fourth quarter
when growth in production and moderate weather allowed gas inventories to be replenished. The level of
US gas prices in 2022 is above bp’s long term price assumption based on the judgement of the price level
required to incentivize new production.

Oil and natural gas reserves

In addition to oil and natural gas prices, significant technical and commercial assessments are required to
determine the group’s estimated oil and natural gas reserves. Reserves estimates are regularly reviewed and .
updated. Factors such as the availability of geological and engineering data, reservoir performance data,
acquisition and divestment activity and drilling of new wells all impact on the determination of the
company’s estimates of its oil and natural gas reserves. bp bases its reserves estimates on the requirement
of reasonable certainty with rigorous techmcal and commercial assessments based on conventional industry
practice and regulatory requirements.

Reserves assumptions for value-in-use tests reflect the reserves and resources that management currently
intend to develop. The recoverable amount of oil and gas properties is determined using a combination of
inputs including reserves, resources and production volumes. Risk factors may be applied to reserves and
resources which do not meet the criteria to be treated as proved or probable.

Significant judgments and estimates: post balance sheet event

In 2Q23 there was an impairment trigger on the Tortue CGU mainly due to an increase in the forecast for
future expenditure and this resulted in an impairment charge of $498 million related to the company’s
tangible and intangible assets. The directors have concluded that this impairment relates to events and
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" circumstances arising since 31 December 2022 and therefore the impact of this impairment is to be included
in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Sensitivity analyses

Management considers discount rates, oil and natural gas prices and production to be the key sources of
estimation uncertainty in determining the recoverable amount of upstream oil and gas assets. The sensitivity

_analyses below, in addition to covering the key sources of estimation uncertainty, also indicate how the
energy transition, potential future carbon emissions costs and/or reduced demand for oil and gas may further
impact forecast revenue cash inflows to a greater extent than currently anticipated in the group’s value-in-
use estimates for oil and gas CGUs, if carbon emissions costs were to be implemented as a deduction against
revenue cash flows. The analyses therefore represents a net revenue sensitivity.

A change in net revenue from upstream oil and gas properties can arise either due to changes in oil and .
natural gas prices, carbon emissions costs/carbon prlces changes in oil and natural gas production, or a
combination of these.

Management tested the impact of changes in net revenue cash flows in value-in-use impairment testing
under the following sensitivity analyses: an increase in net revenues of 10% in all years up to 2030, 25% in
all subsequent years to 2040 and 40% in all remaining years to 2050; and a decrease in nét revenues of 25%
in all years up to 2030, 50% in all subsequent years to 2040 and 60% in all remaining years to 2050.

Net revenue reductions of this magnitude in isolation could indicatively lead to a reduction in the carrying
amount of the company’s upstream oil and gas properties in the range of $Nil-$327 million of the net book
value of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2022. If this net revenue reduction was solely due
to reductions in oil prices in isolation, it reflects an indicative decrease in the carrying amount of using price

* assumptions for Brent oil trending broadly towards the bottom of the range of prices associated with a pre-
publication version of the World Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD) 'family' of
scenarios considered to be consistent with limiting global average temperature to 1.5°C above pre-industrial
levels. :

These. sensitivity analyses do not, however, represent management’s best estimate of any impairment

- charges or reversals that might be recognized as they do not fully incorporate consequential changes that
may arise, such as changes in costs and business plans and phasing of development. For example, costs
across the industry are more likely to decrease as oil and natural gas prices fall. The analyses also assume the
impact of increases in carbon price on operational GHG emissions are fully absorbed as a decrease in net
revenue (and vice versa) rather than reflecting how carbon prices or other carbon emissions costs may
ultimately be incorporated by the market. The above sensitivity analyses therefore do not reflect a linear
relationship between net revenue and value that can be extrapolated. The interdependency of these inputs
and risk factors plus the diverse characteristics of the company's upstream oil and gas properties limits the
practicability of estlmatmg the probability or extent to which the overall recoverable amount is 1mpacted by
changes to the pr1ce assumptions or productlon volumes.

Management also tested the impact of a one percentage point change in the discount rate used for value-in-
use impairment testing of upstream oil and gas properties. This level of change reflects past experience of a
reasonable change in rate that could arise within the next financial year. If the discount rate was one
percentage point higher across the tests performed, the impairment reversal recognized in 2022 would have
been approximately $151 million lower. If the discount rate was one percentage point lower, the impairment
reversal recognized would have been approximately $178 million higher.
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Stocks

Stocks, other than stocks held for trading purposes, are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is typically determined by the first-in first-out method and comprises direct purchase costs, cost of
production, transportation and manufacturing expenses. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling
price less any further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal. Net realizable value. is
determined by reference to prices existing at the balance sheet date, adjusted where the sale of inventories
after the reporting period gives evidence about their net realizable value at the end of the period. ,

Stocks held for short-tenn trading purposes are stated at fair value less costs to sell and : any changes in fair
value are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Supplies are valued at the lower of cost on a weighted average basis and net realizable value.
Leases

.Agreements that convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for 4 period of time in exchange for
consideration are accounted for as leases. The right to control is conveyed if bp has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the econoemic benefits from, and the right to direct.the use -of, the identified asset
throughout the period of use. An asset is identified if it is explicitly or implicitly specified by the agreement
and any substitution rights held by the lessor over the asset are not considered substantive.

, Agreements that convey the right to control the use of an intangible asset including rights to explore for or
~ use hydrocarbons are not accounted for as leases. See significant accounting policy: intangible assets.

A lease liability is recognized on the balance sheet on the lease commencement date at the present value of
future lease payments over the lease term. The discount rate applied is the rate implicit in the lease if readily
determinable, otherwise an incremental borrowing rate is used. For the majority of the leases in the group,
there is not sufficient information available to readily determine the rate implicit in the lease, and therefore
the incremental borrowing rate is used. The incremental borrowing rate is determined based on factors such
as the group’s cost of borrowing, lessee legal entity credit risk, currency and lease term. The lease term is the
non-cancellable period of. a lease together with any periods covered by an extension option that bp is
reasonably certain to exercise, or periods covered by a termination option that bp is reasonably certain not to -
exercise. The future lease payments included in the present value calculation are any fixed payments,
payments that vary depending on an index or rate, payments due for the reasonably certain exercise of
options and expected residual value guarantee payments. -

Payments that vary based on factors other than an index or a rate such as usage, sales volumes or revenues

are not included in the present value calculation and are recognized in the income statement. The lease

liability is récognized on an amortized cost basis with interest expense recognized in the income statement
" over the lease term '

The right-of-use asset is recognized on the balance sheet as property, plant and equipment at a value

equivalent to the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for lease prepayments, lease incentives, °
initial direct costs and any restoration obligations. The right-of-use asset is depreciated typically on a

straight-line basis, over the lease term. The depreciation charge is recognized in the income statement,

except where capitalized as exploration and appraisal expenditure. Right-of-use assets are assessed for

impairment in line with the accounting policy for impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible

assets.

If the lease term at commencement of the agreement is less than 12 months, a lease liability and right-of-use
asset are not recognized, and a lease expense is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis.

If a significant event or change in circumstances, within the control of bp, arises that affects the reasonably
certain lease term or there are changes to the lease payments, the present: value of the lease liability is
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remeasured using the revised term and payments, with the right-of use asset adjusted by an equivalent
amount. :

- Modifications to a lease agreement beyond the original terms and conditions are accounted for as a re-
measurement of the lease liability with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Any gain or loss
on modification is recognized in the income statement. Modifications that increase the scope of the lease at a
price commensurate with the stand-alone selling price are accounted for as a separate new lease. ‘

The company recognizes the full lease liability, rather than its working interest share for leases entered into
on behalf of a joint operatxon if the company has the primary responsibility for making the lease payments.
In’such cases, the company’s working interest share of the right-of-use asset is recognized if it is jointly
controlled by the company and the other joint operators, and a receivable is recognized for the share of the
asset transferred to the other joint operators. If the company is a non-operator, a payable to the operator is
recognized if they have the primary responsibility for making the lease payments and the company has joint
control over the right-of-use asset, otherwise no balances are recognized.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, normally being the transaction price. In the case of u
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs are also
included. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification, as set out below.
The company derecognizes financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows expire or the rights
to receive cash flows have been transferred to a third party along with either substantially all of the risks and
rewards or control of the asset. This includes the derecognition of receivables for which discounting
arrangements are entered into.

. The company classifies its financial assets as measured at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss.
The classification depends on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. :

Fi manctal assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets are classified as measured at amortized cost when they are held in a business model the
objective of which is to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual cash flows represent solely
payments . of principal and interest. Such assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method if the time value of money is significant.. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
assets are derecognized or impaired and when interest income is recognized using the effectlve interest
method. This category of financial assets includes trade and other receivables. :

Impairment of financial assets nieas_ured at amortized cost

The company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with: financial assets
measured at amortized cost at each balance sheet date. Expected credit losses are measured based on the
maximum contractual period over which the company is exposed to credit risk. As lifetime expected credit
losses are recognized for trade receivables and the tenor of substantially all other in-scope financial assets is
less than 12 months there is no significant difference between the measurement of 12-month and lifetime
expected credit losses for the company. The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default. The expected credit loss is estimated as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the future cash flows the company
expects to receive, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is adjusted, with the amount of the impairment gain or loss recogmzed in the proﬁt and loss
account.

A financial asset or group of financial assets classified as measured at amortized cost is considered to be
credit-impaired if there is reasonable and supportable evidence that one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future.cash flows of the financial asset (or group of financial assets)

30. - DTT




DocuSign Envelope ID: 66EAB29A-A404-4B52-8CA9-00F254AD54D0
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

have occurred. Financial assets are written off where the company has no reasonable expectation’ of
recovering amounts due. : '

Financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities is as follows:

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs. For
interest-bearing loans and borrowings this is typically equivalent to the fair value of the proceeds received
net of issue costs associated with the borrowing. '

After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking -into account any issue costs, and any
discount or premium on settlement. Gains and losses arising on the repurchase, settlement or cancellation of
liabilities are recognised respectively in interest receivable and similar income and interest payable and
‘similar expenses. This category of financial liabilities includes trade and other payables and finance debt.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are presented gross in the balance sheet unless both of the following criteria
are met: the company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and the
company intends to either settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. If
both of the criteria are met, the amounts are set off and presented net. A right of set off is the company’s
legal right to settle an amount payable to a creditor by applying against it an amount receivable from the
same counterparty. The relevant legal jurisdiction and laws applicable to the relationships between the
partles are considered when assessing whether a current legally enforceable right to set off exists.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where appropriate, the
future cash flow estimates are adjusted to reflect the risks specific to the liability.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected

future cash flows at a pre-tax risk-free rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized in
- the profit and loss account. Provisions are discounted using a nominal discount rate of 3.5% (2021 2.0%)).

Decommissioning :

Liabilities for decommissioning costs are recognized when the company has. an oblxgatlon to plug and
‘abandon 2 well, dismantle and remove a facility or an item of plant and to restore the site on which it is
located, and when a reliable estimate of that liability can be made. Where an obligation exists for a new
facility or item of plant, such as oil and natural gas production or transportation facilities, this liability will
be recognized on construction or installation. Similarly, where obligation exists for a well, this liability is
recognized when it is drilled. An obligation for decommissioning may also crystallise during the period of
operation of a well, facility or item of plant through a change in legislation or through a decision to terminate
operations; an obligation may also arise in cases where an asset has been sold but the subsequent owner is no
longer able to fulfil its decommissioning obligations, for example due to bankruptcy. The amount recognized
is the present value of the estimated future expenditure determined in accordance with the local conditions
and requirements. The provision for the costs of decommissioning wells, production facilities and pipelines
at the end of their economic lives is estimated using existing technology, at future prices, depending on the
expected timing of the activity, and discounted using a nominal discount rate. :

.
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v

An amount equivalent to the decommissioning provision is recognized as part of the corresponding
intangible asset (in the case of an exploration or appraisal well) or property, plant and equipment. The
decommissioning portion of the property, plant and equipment is subsequently depreciated at the same rate ~
as the.rest of the asset. Other than the unwinding of discount on or utilisation of the provision, any change in
the present value of the estimated expenditure is reflected as an adjustment to the provision and the
corresponding asset where that asset is generating or is expected to generate future economic benefits.

Restructuring provisions :

Restructuring provisions are recognized where a detailed formal plan exists, and a valid expectation of risk
of redundancy has been made to those affected but where the: specific outcomes remain uncertain. Where -

formal redundancy offers have been made, the obligations for those amounts are reported as payables and, if

not, as provisions if unpaid at the year-end.

Significant judgements and estimates: provisions

The company holds provisions for the future decommissioning of oil and natural gas production facilities
and pipelines at the end of their economic lives. The largest decommissioning obligations facing the

_ company relate to the plugging and abandonment of wells and the removal and disposal of oil and natural
gas platforms and pipelines. Most of these decommissioning events are many years in the future and the
precise requirements that will have to be met when the removal event occurs are . uncertain.
‘Decommissioning technologies and costs are constantly changing, as well as political, environmental, safety
and public expectations. The timing and amounts of future cash flows are subject to significant uncertainty
and estimation if required in determining the amounts of provisions to be recognized. Any changes in the
expected future costs are reflected in both the provision and the asset.

The timing and amount of future expenditures relating to decommissioning and environmental liabilities are -
reviewed annually. The interest rate used in discounting the cash flows is reviewed quarterly. The nominal
interest rate used to determinethe balance sheet obligations at the end of 2022 was 3.5% (2021 2.0%), which
was based on long-dated US government bonds. The weighted average period over which decommissioning
are generally expected to be incurred is estimated to be approximately 26 years (2021 24 years) respectively. -
Costs at future prices are determined by applylng an inflation rate of 1.5% (2021 1.5%) to decommissioning
costs and 2% (2021 2%) for all other provisions. A lower rate is typically applied to decomm1s51onmg as
certain costs are expected to remain fixed at current or past prlces

‘The estimated phasing of undiscounted cash flows in real terms for the upstream -decommissioning is.
approximately $Nil billion within the next 10 years, $Nil billion in 10 to 20 years and the remainder of
approximately $0.02 billion after 20 years. The timing and amount of decommissioning cash flows are
inherently uncertain and therefore the phasing is management’s current best estimate but may not be what
will ultimately occur.

The bp group is subject to claims and actions for which no provisions have been recognized. The facts and
circumstances relating to particular cases are evaluated regularly in determining whether a provision relating
to a specific litigation should be recognized or revised. Accordingly, significant management judgement

- relating to provisions and contingent liabilities is required, since the outcome of litigation is difficult to
predict.

Employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses, social security contributions, paid annual leave and sick leave are accrued in the
period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the company.
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Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Income tax is recognized in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related tax is recognized in other
comprehensive income or dlrectly in equity. ,
Current tax is based on the taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the profit and loss account because it is determined in accordance with the rules established by the applicable
taxation authorities. It. therefore excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
periods as well as items that are never taxable or deductible. The company’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except: :

» Where the deferred tax liability arises on the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and, at the time of the transaction, does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.. ‘

» In respect.of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in_group undertakings and
associates and interests in joint arrangements, wheére the company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. '

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized. An exception is where the deferred tax asset relates to the deductible temporary difference arising
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and, at the time of the
transaction, does not give rise to equal taxable and deductive temporary differences.

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in group undertakings and
associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is -
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred taf( assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is.no longer probable or increased to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable proﬁt will be
available to allow all or part of the’ deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or to reahze the assets and
settle the 11ab111t1es sxmultaneously
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Where tax treatments are uncertain, if it is considered probable that a taxation authority will accept the
company's proposed tax treatment, income taxes are recognized consistent with the company's income tax
filings. If it is not considered probable, the uncertainty is reflected within the carrying amount of the
applicable tax asset or liability using either the most likely amount or an expected value, depending on which
method better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. X

Judgement is required when determining whether a particular tax is an income tax or another type of tax (for
example a production tax). Accounting for deferred tax is applied to income taxes as described above but is
not applied to other types of taxes; rather such taxes are recognized in the profit and loss account in
accordance with the applicable accounting policy such as Provisions and contingent liabilities.

Finance costs

All finance costs are recognized in the profit and loss account. in the period in which they are incurred.
Interest income , :

. Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues using the effective interest rate — that is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Updates to significant accounting policies

In the current year, the company has applied a number of amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting
period that begins on or after 1 January 2022. '

- Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these
financial statements. '

Impact of new International Financial Reporting Standards

There are no IASB standards, amendments or interpretations in issue but not yet adopted that the directors
anticipate will have a material effect on the reported income or net assets of the company.

3. Operating loss

This is stated after charging'/ (crediting): .

2022 2021

- e : . . $000 $000

Net foreign exchange (gains) / losses ‘ (1,112) (629)

Depreciation of tangible assets _ _ 42 , 71 .
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1,580 1,539
Impairment of intangible assets® ‘ 797 11,192
Impairment of tangible assets® : 328,760 404,252
Reorganisation / restructuring costs® : — 1,596

® Amount is included in Administrative expenses.
® Impairment of tangible assets related to Tortue unit, FPSO and C8 unit.
‘Impairment of intangible assets related to C12 unit. ‘
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4. Auditor’s remuneration

2022 2021
A $000 $000
Fees for the audit of the company 64 - 38

Fees paid to the company's auditor, Deloitte LLP and its associates for services other than the statutory audit
of the company are not disclosed in these financial statements since the consolidated financial statements of
BP Mauritania Investments Limited’s ultimate parent, BP p.l.c., are required to disclose non-audit fees on a
consolidated basis. The fees were bomne by another group company.

5. Interest receivable and similar income

2022 ' 2021

$000 $000
Interest income from amounts owed by group undertakings 19,924 .4,341
Interest income from other loans and receivables . 32,890 7,300
Total interest receivable and similar income i - 52,814 - 11,641

N

Interest income relates to the FPSO financing agreement executed in August 2021 for the GTA (Tortue)
floating production, storage and offloading (FPSO) unit.

6. Interest payable and similar expehses

2022 2021

$000 $000
Interest expense on: 4
Lease liabilities - .31 60
Other interest expense ' 187,669 68,353
Total interest expense _ ' 187,700 68,413
Unwinding of discount on provisions - Note 17 ' 1,566 —
Total interest payable and similar expenses o 189,266 68,413

Other interest expense relates to the FPSO financing agreement executed in August 2021 for the GTA
(Tortue) floating production, storage and offloading (FPSO) unit. This includes $106 million in relation to
the guarantee that BP International Ltd (BPI) provides to GTA FPSO Company Ltd for the lease payments
due from BPMIL and $81 million of interest expense on the financing balance with GTA FPSO Company
Ltd.
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7. Exploration for and evaluation of oil and natural gas resources

The following financial information represents the amounts relating to activity associated with the

exploration for and evaluation of oil and natural gas resources.

For information on significant judgements and estimates made in relation to oil and natural gas accounting

see Intangible assets in Note 2. )
’ 2022

2021
$000 $000

Exploration and evaluation costs
Exploration expenditure written off 797 11,192
Other exploration costs : : . 8 13,929
Exploration expense for the year : 805 25,121
Intangible assets — exploration and appraisal expendlture ' 95,571 93,127
Net assets _ 95,571 93,127
Cash used in operating activities _ ‘ 8 13,929
Cash used in invesfing activities ' 3,241 3,877

During the year the company has recognized impairment charges of $0.8 mllhon ($11.2 million in 2021)

relating to exploration & appraisal intangible assets.

8. Taxation

The company is a member of a group for the purposes of relief within Part 5, Corporation Tax Act 2010.

The taxation credit iri the profit and loss account is made up as follows:

| 2022 2021
Current tax ' $000 $000
Total current tax charged / (credited) : — —

- Deferred tax ,

Overseas deferred tax ' E (98,587) (105,084)
Adjustments in prior year temporary differences : 49 —
Total defetred tax credited _ (98,538)  (105,084)
Tax credited on loss = , S : (98,538) (105,084)

In 2022 the total tax charge recognized within other comprehensive income was $Nil (2021 $N11) and the

total tax charge recogmzed dxrectly in equity was $Nil (2021 $Nil)._

(a) Reconciliation of the effective tax rate

The company operates through a permanent establishment based in Mauritania and therefore profits an'sing
in the permanent establishment are taxed in the local jurisdiction at the rate agreed under the concession of
27%. The reconciliation is based upon the tax computation prepared for the Mauritanian authorities.

The reconciliation above is based upon the tax computation prepared for the Mauritanian authorities.
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Loss before tax
" Tax credlt
Effectlve tax rate

Local concession rate %
Decrease resulting from:

Movements in unrecognised deferred tax
Effective tax rate

Change 1n COor poratlon tax rate

2022 2021

~ $000- $000

(312,445) (709,177)

(98,538) (105,084)
32 % 15 %
2022 2021

% %

27 27
5 T (12) .

32 15

On 3 March 2021, the UK Government announced an increase in the UK’s main corporatlon tax rate from

19% to 25%, effective from 1 April 2023. This will -increase the company’s. future current tax charge
accordingly. This rate’ change was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021. As the company has not
recognised a UK deferred tax asset at the balance sheet date, the impact of this rate change has not been

“calculated.

Deferred tax has not been recognised on deductlble temporary differences relating to provisions of
$106,449,000 (2021: $221,305,000), fixed assets of $1,903,340,000 (2021: $1,678,109,000) and tax losses
of $139,000 (2021: $139,000) with no fixed expiry date on the basis that they are UK tax attributes that are

no expected to give rise to any future tax benefit.

(b) Provision for deferred tax

The deferred tax included in the profit and loss account and balance sheet is as follows:

’

Deferred tax asset

Decommissioning and other provisions
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances
- Net credit for deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax credit and net deferred tax asset

Analysis of movements during the year:

At 1 January 2022
Deferred tax credit in the profit and loss account
At 31 December 2022

9. Direct(_)rs and employees

Profit and loss account

Balance sheet

2022 2021 2022 2021
$000 - $000. $000 $000
©(25,397) (1,228) 26,625 1,228
(73,141)  (103,856) 478,854 405,713
(98,538) _ (105,084) 505,479 406,941
(98,538) _ (105,084) 505,479 406,941
2022

$000

406,941
- 98,538

: 505479
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‘(a) Remuneration of directors

" None of the directors received any fees or remuneration for qualifying services as a director of the company

during the financial year (2021 $Nil).

During the year the company recognized an impairment charge of $0.8 million relating to Phase 2 (included
in the Tortue CGU) of the GTA project following revision to management’s best estimate of oil and gas
price assumptions for value-in-use impairment testing.

“(b) Employee costs .
. : 2022 - - 2021
~ : B $000 $000
Wages and salaries - , : e ‘ 6,801 4,570
Social security costs ' ' ' - o 322 7
7,123 4,577
(c) The average monthly number of employees during the year was 45 (2021: 45).
Intangible assets . (
Exploration
: ‘ A : ‘ A expenditure
Cost ’ _ “ ‘ $000 .
At 1 January 2022: . ' C 254,688
Additions ‘ ' _ 3,241
At 31 December 2022 , - 257,929
* Amortisation -
At | January 2022 S ] ‘ ‘ (161,561)
Impairment . o : : ‘ . (797)
At3]1 December 2022 . ' o © . (162,358)
- Net book value 4 ‘ :
At 31 December 2022 h o 95,571
At 31 December 2021 l ' o . ' 93,127
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11.. Tangible assets

Land & Fixtures& ~ Oil&gas . Plant& ' " Of which

. buildings fittings  properties machinery Total | AUC*

Cost - owned tangible $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
assets : : '

- At 1 January 2022 R 1,983 1,360,057 — . 1,362,040 1,360,057
Additions - ' — — 645,892 — 645,892 -558,981
At 31 December 2022 — 1,983 2,005,949 __— 2,007,932 1,919,038
Depreciation - owned
tangible assets . _ . .
At 1 January 2022 — (1,853) (1,360,057) — (1,361,910) (1,360,057)
Charge for the year — 42) — — 42 - —
Impairment -— S — (328,760) — (328,760) (76,565)

" At 31 December 2022 — (1,895) (1,688,817) —  (1,690,712) (1,436,622)

Owned tangible assets
- net book value ' . :

At 31 December 2022 . — 88 317,132 — 317,220 482,416
Right-of-use assets - '
net book value : : .

" At 31 December.2022 564 - — — - 110 674 —

Total tangible assets 3 A ‘ :
At 31 December 2022 ' - 564 88 317,132 110 317,894 482,416

Total net book value
At 31 December 2021 1,088 130 — . 552 1,770 . —

Depreciatioh charge for
the year on right-of-use

assets .
2022 ‘ 1,138 _ — — - . 442 1,580 _ —
2021 1,097 — — 442 1,539 L —

*AUC = assets under construction. Assets under construction are not depreciated.

Durihg the yéar the company has recognized impairment charges of $328 'million'rel'ating to prdducing oil
and gas assets.

Management’s best estimate of oil price assumptions for value-in-use impairment testing was revised during v
2022. See 'Significant accounting policies: Impairment of intangible and tangible assets' for details of
assumptions used.

As a result of this review, the company has recognized total impairment charges of $328 million
(2021: $404 million). Impairments were calculated on a value in use basis, applying a discount rate of 8%
(8% in 2021). The residual value of the CGU’s which have recognized impairment charges during the year
was $Nil million. A .
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12.  Stocks - -
2022 2021
5000 $000
Supplies 4,323 7,919

-4,323 7,919
The difference between the carrying value of sfocks and their replacement cost is not material.
The stock is valued at net realisable value of $4.3 mfllion (2021: $7.9 million) at 31 December 2022.

13. . 'Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:

2022 2021

: § $000 $000

Trade debtors . 4 ‘ 210 - 10

Amounts owed from group undertakmgs -, 327,441 106,680

Other debtors ‘ , . 159,269 110,131

' - 486,920 216,821
Amounts falling due after one year:

’ 2022 2021

$000 $000

Amounts owed by group undertakings - 369,897 255,847

Other debtors . o : 591,639 421,854

Deferred income . - . . 8,225 7,564

Deferred tax - o 505,479 406,941

1,475,240 1,092,206

Total debtors ' : . . \ 1,962,160- 1,309,027 -

The amounts owed from group undertakings and falling due within one year are mainly driven by the share
of Tortue unit operation spend owed by BP Senegal Investments Limited ($324 million) that are repayable
on demand and no interest is being charged.

The other debtdrs balance includes the partner share of liabilities yet to be cash called (3159 million). Based -
on an agreemerit with our partners cash calls are paid on a monthly basis and no interest is being charged.

Other debtors falling due after one year includes .$592 million which relates to the FPSO financing
agreement executed in August 2021 for the GTA (Tortue) floating production, storage and offloading
(FPSO) unit. This is the receivable owed by partners and has increased in line with progress on the FPSO
construction plus interest. Interest is calculated quarterly on the total FPSO development costs as at the first
day of a calendar quarter using the Secured Overnight Fmancmg Rate daily rate plus a fixed margin. The .
interest rate at year end was 8.44% (2021 5.003%).

The deferred tax debtor due after one year relates to the GTA project and has increased fblldwing' the
impairment recorded on the Tortue CGU.
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Creditors

Amounts falling due within one year:

2022 2021
. ‘ $000 $000
Trade creditors ' , : 7,766 3,038
Amounts owed to group undertakmgs ~ 130,679 447,844
Other creditors , ‘ ' -266,369 235,664
Accruals : ‘ 293,809 184,516
698,623 871,062

Amounts falling due after one Year: :
. 2022 2021
4 . : $000 $000
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - ' 1,353,523 965,097
" Total creditors o : 2,052,146 1,836,159

Materially all of the company's trade. payables have payment terms in the range of 30 to 60 days and give

rise to operatmg cash flows.

Increase of $216 million total creditors balance is mainly driven by the FPSO Financing arrangement and -

the loan from GTA FPSO Company Ltd to the value of $388 million classified as Creditors falling due after
one year. Further increase of partner balance $30.7 million of other creditors mostly related to overcall

against non-group partners (the proceeds received for the FPSO inception to date costs were retained by }

BPMIL to fund non FPSO related GTA activity). Increase of $109 million in accruals is due to movement in

capex creditors related to GTA project.

The above was offset by a decrease in the IFA balance at the value of $282 million and further decrease of

partner balance mostly against BPSIL of $34 million.
Loans and obligations under leases

Loans repayable and obligations under leases are analysed as follows:

Within 5 years .

2022 - 2021
Lease Lease )
-Loans _ liabilities Total Loans liabilities  Total
' $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 - $000
Not wholly repayable' — - 740 740 — 1675 1,675
— 740 740 — 1,675 1,675

IIn_ case of lease liabilities, not wholly repayable means repayable by instalments.
The amount of lease liabilities due within one year is $0.8 million.
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16. Leases “

The cdmpany leases a number of assets as part of its activities. This primarily includes drilling rigs in the
Upstream segment as well as office accommodation and vessel charters across the group. The weighted
average remaining lease term for the total lease portfolio is around 2 years.

The company may enter into lease arrangements a number of years before taking control of the underlying
asset due to construction lead times or to secure future operational requirements. The total undiscounted
amount for future commitments for leases not yet commenced as at 31 December 2022 is $4,425 million. -

2022 2021

- $000 $000

Additions to right-of-use assets in the period ‘ 613 664
Total cash outflow for amounts included in lease liabilities : 1,591 1,603

An analysis of right-of-use assets and depreciation is provided in Note 11. An analysis of lease interest
expense is provided in Note 6.

17.  Other provisions

Decom- - A
missioning Other Total
. $000 $000 $000
At 1 January 2022 ' 17,870 203,872 221,742
New or increased provisions: _ _ ' . A
Charged to profit and loss account , i o —  (187,345) °~ (187,345)
Recognised within tangible assets ‘ ‘ 130,412 . = 130,412
Unwinding of discount ' 1,566 L — 1,566
Change in discount rate : (43,499) — (43,499)
Utilisation ' | —  (16,097) (16,097)
At 31 December 2022 ‘ o 106,349 430 106,779
At 31 December 2022 _
Current . = 429 429
Non-current _ ' ' 106,349 1 106,350
' A ‘ 106,349 430 106,779
At 31 December 2021 | .
Current : — . 16,526 . 16,526
Non-current - ' 17,870 187,346 205,216

17,870 203,872 221,742

Decrease of $203 million in other provisions primarily relate to onerous contract provision recorded of
$190 million in administrative expense in Profit and Loss. Remaining decrease of other provisions relates to
social projects in Mauritania (Mauritania Learning Centre and a scholarship programme) and C12
Exploration Well minimum work obligation provision settled in 2022. The Mauritania Learning Centre is

- funded by BP Mauritania Investment Limited and Kosmos Energy Mauritania whlle the scholarship
programme is solely funded by BP Maurltama Investment Limited.

Decommissioning provision was recognised during the year related to the Greater Tortue Ahmeyim
production facilities. : -
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For information on significant Judgements and estimates made in relation to provisions, see Provisions
within Note 2.

Called up share capital

2022 2021
$000 $000

Issued and fully paid:

2,340,356,498 ordinary shares of $1 each for a total nominal value of

$2,340,356,498 (2021: 1,490,356,498 ordinary shares of $1 each for a total

nominal value of $1,490,356,498) . 2,340,356 1,490,356
' 2,340,356 1,490,356

On 17 F ebruary 2022, $280,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each for a total nominal value of $280,000,000,
were allotted to the immediate parent company at par value.

On 17 November 2022, $570,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each for a total nominal value of $570,000, 000
were allotted to the immediate parent company at par value.

Reserves
Called up share capital
The balance on the called up share capital account represents the aggregate nominal value of all ordinary

shares in issue.

Profit and loss account
The balance held on this reserve is the accumulated losses of the company.

- In 2022, the company paid interim ordmary dividends of $Nil (2021 $Nil). The dividend per share was $0.00
(2021 $0.00). :

Capital commitments

Authorized and contracted future capital expenditure (excluding right-of-use assets) by the company for

“which contracts had been placed but not provided in the financial statements at 31 December 2022 is

estimated at $586,550,030 (2021 $633,093,062).

Related party transactions

- The company has taken advantage of the exemption contained within paragraphs- 8(k) and (j) of FRS 101,

and has not disclosed transactions entered into with wholly-owned group companies or key management
personnel.

Post balance sheet events . ' ‘

In 2Q23 there was an impairment trigger on the Tortue CGU mainly due to an increase in the fofecast for
future expenditure and this resulted in an impairment charge of $498 million related to the company’s
tangible and intangible assets. This impairment relates to events and circumstances arising since 31
December 2022 and therefore the impact will be included in the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023. : ‘ )
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Immediate and ultimate control[ing parent undertaking

The immediate parent undertaking is BP Exploration Operating Company Limited, a company registered in
England and Wales. The ultimate controlling parent undertaking is BP p.l.c., a company registered in
England and Wales, which is the smallest and largest group to consolidate these fmanc1a1 statements. Copies
of the consolidated financial statements of BP p.l.c. can be obtained from its registered-address: St James’s
Square London, SW1Y 4PD.
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